
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public except 
by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a public 

meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe 

and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA 
Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for 

those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 1 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Friday, June 3, 2022 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Invocation - Rev. Dr. Ford G'Segner 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (DB) 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
5. Public Comments 

6. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - May 17, 2022 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - May 25, 2022 Called Meeting (staff-CC) 

c. Approval of 2022 Alcohol License(s) (staff-CC) 

7. Authorization for Chairman to sign the Georgia Indigent Defense Services Agreement (staff-Fin) 

8. Approval of Right-of-Way Permit Application from AT&T (staff-CM) 

9. Approval of Surplus of Fixed Assets (staff-Fin) 

10. Appointment to the Putnam Development Authority (staff-CC) 

11. Awarding of Solicitation 22-04-21 Bethel Church Road Waterline Relocation (staff-CM) 

12. Authorization for staff to schedule a Public Hearing for proposed adoption of changes to the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Chapter 28 (Development Regulations) (staff-CA) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
13. County Manager Report 

14. County Attorney Report 

15. Commissioner Announcements 

 

Executive Session 
16. Enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Personnel, Litigation, or Real Estate 

17. Reopen meeting and execute Affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed portion of the 

meeting 

18. Action, if any, resulting from the Executive Session 

 

Closing 
19. Adjournment 

1



File Attachments for Item:

6. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes - May 17, 2022 Regular Meeting (staff-CC)

b. Approval of Minutes - May 25, 2022 Called Meeting (staff-CC)

c. Approval of 2022 Alcohol License(s) (staff-CC)

2



Draft Minutes Page 1 of 8  

May 17, 2022   

 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Tuesday, May 17, 2022 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Tuesday, May 17, 2022 at approximately 

6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, 

Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Barry Fleming 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 6:30 p.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

Motion to approve the Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

3. Invocation - Cynthia Wallace 

Ms. Cynthia Wallace gave the invocation. 

 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (GM) 

Commissioner McElhenney led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

3



Draft Minutes Page 2 of 8  

May 17, 2022   

 

5. Special Presentation - Boys Basketball All Star Team 

The 7 to 8 Boys Basketball team led by Head Coach Darius Little and Assistant Coach Harold 

Smith was presented with a Proclamation at the May 17, 2022 BOC meeting. The team recently 

defeated Morgan County to win the Georgia Parks and Recreation Association (GPRA) District 

6 Championship in Madison, Georgia. The Board of Commissioners and citizens are proud of the 

team’s outstanding achievement. 

 

Zoning Public Hearing 
6. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Jacqueline Trinkle, to rezone the following: (staff-

P&D) 

a. 19.45 acres at 842 Harmony Road from AG to C-2 [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, District 

1] 

b. 20.80 acres at 842 Harmony Road from AG to RM-3 [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, 

District 1] 

Speakers for 6a and 6b: 

Mr. Rick McAllister, agent for Jacqueline Trinkle, spoke in support of this request. 

Mrs. Barbara Vargo & Mr. William Vargo also spoke in support of this request. 

Ms. Kathy Wardlaw signed in to speak against this item but declined the opportunity to speak. 

 

6a. 19.45 acres at 842 Harmony Road from AG to C-2 [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, District 1] 

 

Planning and Development Staff recommendation was for approval to rezone 19.45 acres at 842 

Harmony Road from AG to C-2 [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, District 1] with the following 

conditions: 

1. The developer shall construct a deceleration lane and turn lane in accordance with the 

Georgia Department of Transportation Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment Control to 

service the two entrances on Harmony Road. Additional right-of-way to accommodate the 

deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be dedicated by the developer to the county. It 

shall be completed by the developer prior to the completion of phase one. 

2. A 50-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut Map 097, Parcel 

061. 

3. A 20-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut Map 097, Parcel 

033.  

4. A 50-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut the proposed 

20.80-acre RM-3 parcel. 

5. This rezoning approval shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation in the 

Superior Court of Putnam County of an accurate plat within 60 days of approval by the board 

of commissioners. A copy of the recorded plat shall be filed with the planning and 

development department director. Failure to file a plat pursuant to this subsection shall have 

the effect of invalidating the rezoning action as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam 

County Code of Ordinances. 

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation was for denial to rezone 19.45 acres at 

842 Harmony Road from AG to C-2. [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, District 1]. 

 

4



Draft Minutes Page 3 of 8  

May 17, 2022   

 

Mr. McAllister advised that he is in agreement with all conditions with the exception of #5 and 

requested 120 days to resurvey and record the plat. 

 

Motion to approve the request by Rick McAllister, agent for Jacqueline Trinkle, to rezone 

19.45 acres at 842 Harmony Road from AG to C-2 identified as Map 097, Part of Parcel 

060 with with the following conditions: 

1. The developer shall construct a deceleration lane and turn lane in accordance with 

the Georgia Department of Transportation Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment 

Control to service the two entrances on Harmony Road. Additional right-of-way to 

accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be dedicated by the 

developer to the county. It shall be completed by the developer prior to the completion 

of phase one. 

2. A 50-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut Map 097, 

Parcel 061. 

3. A 20-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut Map 097, 

Parcel 033.  

4. A 50-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut the 

proposed 20.80-acre RM-3 parcel. 

5. This rezoning approval shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation 

in the Superior Court of Putnam County of an accurate plat within 120 days of 

approval by the board of commissioners. A copy of the recorded plat shall be filed with 

the planning and development department director. Failure to file a plat pursuant to 

this subsection shall have the effect of invalidating the rezoning action as stated in 

Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

 

6b. 20.80 acres at 842 Harmony Road from AG to RM-3 [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, District 

1] 

 

Planning and Development Staff recommendation was for approval to rezone 20.80 acres at 842 

Harmony Road from AG to RM-3 [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, District 1] with the following 

conditions: 

1. The developer shall construct a deceleration lane and turn lane in accordance with the 

Georgia Department of Transportation Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment Control to 

service the two entrances on Harmony Road. Additional right-of-way to accommodate the 

deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be dedicated by the developer to the county. It 

shall be completed by the developer prior to the completion of phase one. 

2. A 20-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut Map 097, Parcel 

033 and Map 097, Parcel 033001.  

3. A 50-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut the R-1R Single 

Family lots identified as Map 097 Parcels 056006, 056007, 056008, and 056009. 

4. This rezoning approval shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation in the 

Superior Court of Putnam County of an accurate plat within 60 days of approval by the board 

of commissioners. A copy of the recorded plat shall be filed with the planning and 

5



Draft Minutes Page 4 of 8  

May 17, 2022   

 

development department director. Failure to file a plat pursuant to this subsection shall have 

the effect of invalidating the rezoning action as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam 

County Code of Ordinances. 

 

Motion to approve the request by Rick McAllister, agent for Jacqueline Trinkle, to rezone 

20.80 acres at 842 Harmony Road from AG to RM-3 identified as Map 097, Part of Parcel 

060 with the following conditions:  

1. The developer shall construct a deceleration lane and turn lane in accordance with 

the Georgia Department of Transportation Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment 

Control to service the two entrances on Harmony Road. Additional right-of-way to 

accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be dedicated by the 

developer to the county. It shall be completed by the developer prior to the completion 

of phase one. 

2. A 20-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut Map 097, 

Parcel 033 and Map 097, Parcel 033001.  

3. A 50-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut the R-1R 

Single Family lots identified as Map 097 Parcels 056006, 056007, 056008, and 056009. 

4. This rezoning approval shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation 

in the Superior Court of Putnam County of an accurate plat within 120 days of 

approval by the board of commissioners. A copy of the recorded plat shall be filed with 

the planning and development department director. Failure to file a plat pursuant to 

this subsection shall have the effect of invalidating the rezoning action as stated in 

Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

 

7. Request by Adam Schulze to rezone the following: (staff-P&D) 

a. 11.604 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG [Map 111, Parcel 001045 001, District 

4] 

b. 11.030 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG [Map 111, Parcel 001045 002, District 

4] 

c. 15.696 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG [Map 111, Parcel 001045 003, District 

4] 

Speakers for 7a, 7b, and 7c: 

Mr. Matt Roessing, attorney for Adam Schulze spoke in support of the request. Also speaking in 

support of the request were: Mr. Larry Atkinson, Mr. Adam Schulze, Mrs. Cason Schulze, Mrs. 

Connie Barnes, Mr. George Barnes, Mr. Johnny Pressley. 

Speaking against this item were: Mr. Duane Gentes, Ms. Pamela Tibbitts, Ms. Marianne Bruhn 

Popik, Mr. Hank Bowden. 

 

7a. 11.604 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG [Map 111, Parcel 001045 001, District 4] 

 

Planning and Development Staff recommendation was for denial to rezone 11.604 acres from R-

1 to AG on Emory Drive [Map 111, Parcel 001045 001, District 3]. 

 

6



Draft Minutes Page 5 of 8  

May 17, 2022   

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation was for approval to rezone 11.604 acres 

on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG. [Map 111, Parcel 001045 001, District 3]. 

 

Motion to deny the request by Adam Schulze to rezone 11.604 acres on Emory Drive SE 

from R-1 to AG identified as Map 111, Parcel 001045 001. 

Motion made by Commissioner Wooten, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 

Voting Nay: Commissioner Brown 

 

7b. 11.030 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG [Map 111, Parcel 001045 002, District 4] 

 

Planning and Development Staff recommendation was for denial to rezone 11.030 acres from R-

1 to AG on Emory Drive [Map 111, Parcel 001045 002, District 3]. 

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation was for approval to rezone 11.030 acres 

from R-1 to AG on Emory Drive [Map 111, Parcel 001045 002, District 4]. 

 

Motion to deny the request by Adam Schulze to rezone 11.030 acres on Emory Drive SE 

from R-1 to AG identified as Map 111, Parcel 001045 002. 

Motion made by Commissioner Wooten, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 

Voting Nay: Commissioner Brown 

 

7c. 15.696 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG [Map 111, Parcel 001045 003, District 4] 

 

Planning and Development Staff recommendation was for denial to rezone 15.696 acres from R-

1 to AG on Emory Drive [Map 111, Parcel 001045 003, District 3]. 

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation was for approval to rezone 15.696 acres 

from R-1 to AG on Emory Drive [Map 111, Parcel 001045 003, District 3]. 

 

Motion to deny the request by Adam Schulze to rezone 15.696 acres on Emory Drive SE 

from R-1 to AG identified as Map 111, Parcel 001045 003. 

Motion made by Commissioner Wooten, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Wooten 

Voting Nay: Commissioner Brown 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
8. Public Comments 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7



Draft Minutes Page 6 of 8  

May 17, 2022   

 

9. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - May 6, 2022 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - May 6, 2022 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

c. Approval of 2022 Alcohol License(s) (staff-CC) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

10. Authorization for Chairman to sign Technical Assistance Letter to the Middle Georgia 

Regional Commission for Gateway Aesthetic Overlay assistance (BW) 

Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign a Technical Assistance Letter to the Middle 

Georgia Regional Commission for Gateway Aesthetic Overlay assistance. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of letter made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

11. Awarding of Solicitation 22-35001-001 Fire Station & EMS Facility (staff-CM & Fire) 

County Manager Van Haute advised that the low bidder was Renfroe Construction Company at 

$5,996,459.00. 

Motion to award Solicitation 22-35001-001 Fire Station & EMS Facility to Renfroe 

Construction Company at $5,996,459.00. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

12. Surplus of County Vehicle (staff-Fire) 

Fire Chief McClain requested to surplus County vehicle Asset #0331, a 2010 F550 EONE 

Medium Duty Rescue Truck.  He explained that it is starting to cost more to repair it than it is 

worth, and it is mainly unused and no longer fits their response model. 

Motion to approve the surplus of county vehicle asset #0331, a 2010 F550 EONE Medium 

Duty Rescue Truck. 

Motion made by Commissioner Wooten, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

13. Authorization to establish a Capital Projects Fund (staff-Finance) 

Motion to authorize the establishment of a Capital Projects Fund. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

 

 

 

8



Draft Minutes Page 7 of 8  

May 17, 2022   

 

14. Approval of 2022 Budget Amendment #1 (staff-Finance) 

Motion to approve 2022 Budget Amendment #1. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of amendment made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
15. County Manager Report 

County Manager Van Haute reported that at 4:00 p.m. today, the City Administrator dropped off 

a signed Certificate of Distribution for what the city would like for the Local Option Sales Tax 

Distribution. 

 

16. County Attorney Report 

No report. 

 

17. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner McElhenney: none 

 

Commissioner Brown: none 

 

Commissioner Sharp: none 

 

Commissioner Wooten: none 

 

Chairman Webster: none 

 

Executive Session 
18. Enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Personnel, Litigation, or Real 

Estate 

Chairman Webster advised that there was no need for an Executive Session. 

 

19. Reopen meeting and execute Affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed portion of 

the meeting 

Executive Session not held. 

 

20. Action, if any, resulting from the Executive Session 

Executive Session not held. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9



Draft Minutes Page 8 of 8  

May 17, 2022   

 

Closing 
21. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 8:38 p.m. 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

10



Draft Called Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 3  

May 25, 2022   

 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Wednesday, May 25, 2022 ◊ 11:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Wednesday, May 25, 2022 at 

approximately 11:00 AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 204, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Adam Nelson 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

Planning and Development Director Lisa Jackson 

 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 11:07 a.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

Chairman Webster also congratulated Chairman-Elect Sharp on his victory yesterday. 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance (GM) 

Commissioner McElhenney led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11



Draft Called Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 3  

May 25, 2022   

 

Regular Business Meeting 
3. Request by LA Development LLC for an appeal of the Planning and Zoning Commission's 

decision at 163 Overlook Drive. Presently zoned AG [Map 089D, Parcel 010, District 2] 

(staff-P&D) 

Chairman Webster explained this item was tabled from the April 19, 2022 meeting at the request 

of the applicant. 

 

County Attorney Nelson reviewed the item to date.  Mr. White requested to revise the major 

subdivision plat for Overlook at Pea Ridge. The Board of Commissioners approved the plat on 

June 5, 2021. LA Development LLC has requested to have the subdivision plat amended in order 

to subdivide parcel 089D010 into two separate parcels. The subdivided parcel would not front or 

be accessed by the interior road which is required of a major subdivision.  Planning and 

Development Director Jackson denied the request under Code Section 28-40-b-3 and the 

Planning and Zoning Commission upheld the Director's decision at their April 7, 2022 

meeting.  The question today for the Board of Commissioners is whether or not to uphold the 

staff's decision. 

 

Mr. Lowell White spoke in support of the appeal and thanked the board for the opportunity and 

the called meeting.  He explained that this matter is time sensitive and is the first sale in the 

neighborhood.  He further explained how they were requesting to subdivide the parcel. The 10.4-

acre AG lot had a minimum 5-acre lot requirement. He stated that Ms. Jackson told him that the 

5.2-acre lot they requested to remove from the subdivision would have been okay to be removed 

if it was left out of the original approved plat.  Mr. White stated that the county code did not have 

a mechanism that allowed them to remove the parcel from the subdivision. They were under 

contract and wanted to create a standalone parcel outside of the subdivision. Potential buyers 

would like to place a barndominium on the 5.2-acre lot.  The parcel would have 400 plus feet on 

MLK Jr. Drive and would conform to the AG zoning. 

 

Motion to deny the request by LA Development LLC for an appeal of the Planning and 

Zoning Commission's decision at 163 Overlook Drive [Map 089D, Parcel 010]. 

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12



Draft Called Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3  

May 25, 2022   

 

Closing 
4. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 12:02 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

13



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Approval of 2022 Alcohol Licenses 

 
The following alcohol license applications (which are available for review in 
the County Clerk’s office) have been approved by the Sheriff, Fire Marshal 

and/or Building Inspector, and Tax Commissioner and are ready for BOC 
approval: 
 

Individual 

Name 

Business Name Address License Type 

Kristin Marshall The Pickled Okra 
651 Old Phoenix 

Road 

Retail Consumption on Premises 

of Malt Beverages and/or Wine 

and Distilled Spirits 

 
 

14

mailto:lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us
http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


File Attachments for Item:

7. Authorization for Chairman to sign the Georgia Indigent Defense Services Agreement (staff-Fin)

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



File Attachments for Item:

8. Approval of Right-of-Way Permit Application from AT&T (staff-CM)

28



PUTNAM COUNTY

RIGHT-OF-WAY PERMIT APPLICATION

Date: _______________________________ 

CONTRACTOR NAME: ______________________________ TELEPHONE NO. ____________________ 

WORK TO BE DONE ON R.O.W. OF _________________ AND ____________________ 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK:  _______________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DATE WORK TO BEGIN:  ________________________________________________ 

COMPLETION DATE:  ___________________________________________________ 

ANY CRANE/BOOM LIFTING DEVICE OR SCAFFORLDING TO BE USED ON SITE ____ YES ____ NO 

IF YES – PLEASE PROVIDE A SKETCH OF LOCATION OF EQUIPMENT & SAFETY MEASURES MUST BE SUBMITTED 
WITH THIS APPLICATION. 

WORK AREA UNDER THIS PERMIT IS APPROXIMATELY _____ LENGTH _____ WIDTH 

DOES YOUR BOND COVER PATCH WORK ______ YES ______ NO 

WILL THIS PERMIT REQUIRE BORING ______ YES ______ NO 

WILL YOU NEED TO CLOSE A ROAD ______ YES ______ NO 

WILL YOU NEED TO CUT A SIDEWALK ______ YES ______ NO 

Note:  Permittee shall comply in whole with this permit, which is issued in accordance with PUTNAM COUNTY 
CODES & ORDINANCES. 
The closing of any road requires a sketch to be submitted and alternate route to be approved by the Putnam 
County Public Works Department. 

Applicant: __________________________ Contact, If not Applicant ______________________________ 

Company Name: _____________________ 

Telephone: 

___________________ Fax: __________________ 

Mobile Phone: _________________ Address:  ____________________________________________________ 

City:  _________________________ State: _______________ Zip Code:   ________________ 

Official Use Only 

Permit No. ___________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________
OFFICE USE ONLY:
Payment Received:  $55.00  Date ____________________  Receipt # ______________________

5/26/2022
ANSCO

PROPOSED 3221' OF FIBER OPTIC CABLE (BURIED ENVIRONMENT)

PROPOSED 201’OF BURIED 1" INNERDUCT & PROPOSED 54’ OF 3” FLEX PIPE

864-494-6493

AT&T PROPOSES PLACING THE FOLLOWING:

PROPOSED 17025' OF FIBER OPTIC CABLE (AERIAL ENVIRONMENT)

PROPOSED (5) 10X15 HANDHOLE & PROPOSED (2) 17X30 HANDHOLE

6/8/2022
12/8/2022

20501 1FT

HUSSAIN HAMLIN STEPHEN GRIGG

AT&T 864-494-6493
404-765-6822 3065 MAIN ST

EAST POINT GA 30344

N ROCK ISLAND DR WINDING RIVER RD AREA

✔

✔
✔

✔
✔

29



W
IN

D
IN

G
 R

IV
ER

 R
D

 N
E

N R
OCK IS

LA
ND D

R

WINDING RIVER RD NE

HARBOR CT NE

HARBOR CT

LOCATION MAP:

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

BURIED SYMBOL LEGEND
Proposed Existing Description

BURIED CABLE

HANDHOLE

PIPE/CONDUIT

BORE

SPLICING PIT

N/A

N/A

IT IS THE CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITY TO CONTACT UTILITY COMPANIES PRIOR TO ANY
CONSTRUCTION AS THE LOCATION OF UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE APPROXIMATE
AND POSSIBLY INCOMPLETE. THEREFORE CERTIFICATION TO THE LOCATION OF ALL
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES IS WITHHELD.

ALL PROPOSED FIBER/CONDUIT TO BE
DIRECTIONAL BORED AT A MINIMUM
OF 24" (48" MINIMUM UNDER STREETS)

GEORGIA
DAIL 811

TWO FULL BUS. DAYS BEFORE YOU DIG

CALL BEFORE YOU DIG

IT IS THE CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITY TO CONTACT
UTILITY COMPANIES PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION AS
THE LOCATION OF UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE
APPROXIMATE AND POSSIBLY INCOMPLETE. THEREFORE
CERTIFICATION TO THE LOCATION OF ALL UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES IS WITHHELD.

www.call811.com

PERMIT NOTES:
AT&T PROPOSES PLACING THE FOLLOWING  TO PROVIDE THE
SURROUNDING AREA WITH FIBER SERVICES.

-- 
-- 
-- 
-- 
-- 
-- 

PROPOSED 3221' OF FIBER OPTIC CABLE (BURIED ENVIRONMENT) 
PROPOSED 17025' OF FIBER OPTIC CABLE (AERIAL ENVIRONMENT)
 (50' ADDED TO EACH SECTION OF AERIAL CABLE)
 PROPOSED 201’ OF BURIED 1" INNERDUCT
PROPOSED 54’ OF 3” FLEX PIPE
PROPOSED (5) 10X15 HANDHOLE
PROPOSED (2) 17X30 HANDHOLE- 

B B

WORK LOCATION

WORK LOCATION :  104 S ROCK ISLAND EATONTON,GA,USA

AERIAL SYMBOL LEGEND
Proposed Existing Description

AERIAL CABLE

POLE

POWER POLE

ANCHOR & GUY

LASH

A A

N/A

1

LACK RIDGE RD

N
 R

O
C

K 
IS

LA
N

D
 D

R

ROCK SPRINGS RD NE

R
O

C
K ISLAN

D
 LN

S ROCK ISLAND DR

ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL TO BE 
HANDLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
THE LATEST APPROVED EDITION 
OF THE MUTCD.

30



• 

TRAFFIC FLOW 

UTILITY 
WORK 
1500' 

•• 

UTILITY 
WORK 
1000' 

•• 

UTILITY 
WORK 
500' 

SPACING FOR CONES 

POSTED TRAFFIC CONE SPACING 
SPEED (M.P.H.) (FEET) 

15 OR UNDER 1 O' 
20 20' 
25 25' 
30 30' 
35 35' 
40 40' 

45 OR ABOVE SAME AS 
POSTED SPEED 

d FLAGGER 

.
. . .  -. . . . . . . . . • • • • • 

• 

• 

• 

9 FLAGGER 

NOTE: 

TRAFFIC CONES 
(SEE CHART) 

SIGNS TO BE PLACED ON PORTABLE STANDS 
WITH SAND BAGS TO PREVENT BLOWING OVER 
& WITH TYPE "B" FLASHER SIGNS TO BE PLACED 
ON SHOULDER 

A CERTIFIED FLAGMAN OR POLICEMAN WILL BE 
EMPLOYED TO DIRECT TRAFFIC FLOW AT 
EACH WORK LOCATION. 

• 

• 

500' 
WORK 

UTILITY 

•• 

1000' 
WORK 

UTILITY 

TRAFFIC FLOW 

TYPICAL 

•• 

1500' 
WORK 

UTILITY 

SIGNS TO BE 48" x 48" W / BLACK LETTERS ON 
ORANGE BACKGROUND 

SAFETY Fl RST 

• 

j't'�-
� ' 

/ I \" 

ATTSE 
PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES 

ON RIGHT OF WAY OF 

PUTNAM COUNTY

Exchange: 

Designer: 

Phone: 

706485 

SMITH,TYRONE 

6786247129
Authorization: 

A029ERL 
Owg. _1A_ of _19_ 

31



P-PI=5'

B

B

A

N 
RO

CK
 IS

LA
ND

 D
R

HARBOR DR

B

B

B

EO
P

EOP

P.
88

23
 3

0A

P.8823 30A
LP-30'
CA-27'
ATT-27'
HOA-27'
DG-E21'6M
2MR3R

TO PRINT 3

TO
PRINT 11

TO
 P

RI
NT

 1
8

25.5'
RD CLR

R
O

C
K 

IS
LA

N
D

 D
R

A

A
P-

PI
=4

9'

PI
-P

=4
9'

B

RISER UP 30'

PI-PI=92'

ROW

R
O

W

min.

20 5

18'

HARBOR DR
Aerial Clearance Detail

EO
P

EO
P

5

2

26
2'

10

1

EO
P

EOP

EOP

EO
P

35
1'

6

EO
PR
O

W

R
O

W

80'

20'40'

N ROCK ISLAND DR

EO
P

20'

C
AB

LE

2'
RO

W

ROW

EO
P

EOP

4

1 PROPOSED 184' BURIED 288
FIBER CABLE BY STANDARD
DRY BORE  @ MIN. 24' DEPTH

2
PROPOSED 865'AERIAL 216
FIBER CABLE LASHED TO
EXISTING STRAND

4 54' FLEX PIPE 3IN

10 PROPOSED 693' BURIED 048
FIBER CABLE BY STANDARD
DRY BORE  @ MIN. 24' DEPTH

6
PROPOSED 746'AERIAL 144
FIBER CABLE LASHED TO
EXISTING STRAND

EXISTING HANDHOLE40

40

R
O

W

ROW

RO
W

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

2

32



P.72380
LP-28'
CA-24'
ATT-24'
HOA-24'
DG-W18'6M1MR2R ROW

EOP

EOP

EOP

EOP

ROW

EOP

EOP

A

A

A

W
INDING RIVER RD NE

N ROCK IS
LA

ND DR

P.742527
LP-27'
CA-22'
ATT-22'
HOA-22'
DG-N22'10M1MR1R

P.7432
LP-33'
CA-30'
ATT-29'
HOA-29'
DG-W21'6M1MR2R

205

209
209

217

107

103

VL

100

230

VL

VL

VL

P.7
42
53
0

P.7
23
80

P.7
43
2

TO PRINT 2

TO PRINT 9

TO PRINT 4

P.742527

22.5'
RD CLR

22.5'
RD CLR

22.5'
RD
CLR

A

A

A

P.742530
LP-27'
CA-23'
ATT-22'
HOA-22'
DG-W18'6M1MR2R

332'

270'

157'

298'

255'

min.

20 5

18'

N ROCK ISLAND DR
Aerial Clearance Detail

EO
P

EO
P

5

2A

5

2

2
PROPOSED AERIAL 216 FIBER
CABLE LASHED TO EXISTING
STRAND

2A
PROPOSED 1857' AERIAL 216
FIBER CABLE LASHED TO
EXISTING STRAND

5
PROPOSED 1726' AERIAL 048
FIBER CABLE LASHED TO
EXISTING STRAND

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

3

33



WINDING RIVER RD NE

ROW
EOP

EOP

ROW
ROW

A

A

A
A

EOP

EOP

142

138
134

132 128 126 120
114

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

P.142
LP-34'
CA-28'
ATT-28'
HOA-28'
DG-N22'10M
1MR1R

P.6569
LP-27'
CA-23
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-N20'10M
1MR1R

P.8758
LP-29'
CA-24'
ATT-24'
HOA-24'
DG-N23'10M
1MR1R

P.42162
LP-29'
CA-24'
ATT-24'
HOA-24'
DG-N15'10M
1MR2R

TO
 PRINT 5

EMPTY
EMPTY

EMPTY
EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

116

P.6569 P.8758 P.42162

P.142 TO
 P

RI
NT

 3

P.7707

211'188'
157'

205'

344'

2A

P.7707
LP-32'
CA-27
ATT-27'
HOA-27'
DG-XFMR

2A
PROPOSED AERIAL 216 FIBER
CABLE LASHED TO EXISTING
STRAND

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

4

34



P.9597
LP-32'
CA-26'
ATT-26'
HOA-26'
DG-E17'10M

P.UKN-7
LP-25'
CA-20'
ATT-20'
HOA-20'
DG-E17'10M

ROWROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

EOPEOP

EOP

EOP

EOP

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

EOP

EOP

EOP
EOP

AA

A

A

A

P.182
LP-26'
CA-26'
ATT-26'
HOA-26'
DG-N18'10M

P.UKN-6
LP-26'
CA-26'
ATT-26'
HOA-26'
DG-E28'6M

P.190
LP-31'
CA-26'
ATT-26'
HOA-26'
DG-N26'10M

TO
 P

R
IN

T 
4

146

150

186

170TO PRINT 6

WINDING RIVER  RD NE

EMPTY

A

A

A

A

A

P.190

P.9597

P.UNK-7

P.182
P.UNK-6

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY
EMPTY EMPTY

EMPTY EMPTY EMPTY

TO
FI

EL
D

3

230'

127'

106'

258'

317'

2A

184

182

2A PROPOSED AERIAL 216 FIBER
CABLE LASHED TO EXISTING
STRAND

3 PROPOSED 2868' AERIAL 072
FIBER CABLE LASHED TO
EXISTING STRAND

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

5

35



EOP
EO

P

EOP

EO
P

W
IN

D
IN

G
 R

IV
ER

 R
D

A

A

A

A

A

A

ROW

R
O

W

R
O

W

200

198

EMPTY

192

217

EMPTY

195

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

P.8866

P.UNK 10

P.UNK 8

TO
 P

RI
NT

 5

P.UNK 9

P.743213

P.7807

P.8866
LP-28'
CA-24'
ATT-24'
HOA-24'
DG-N19'6M
1MR2R

P.UNK 10
LP-28'
CA-24'
ATT-24'
HOA-24'
DG-W16'6M
1MR2R

P.UNK 9
LP-27'
CA-23'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-W20'10M
1MR2R

P.743213
LP-28'
CA-23'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-W19'10M
1MR2R

P.UNK 8
LP-36'
CA-29'
ATT-29'
HOA-29'
DG-XFMR

P.7807
LP-32'
CA-25'
ATT-25'
HOA-25'
DG-S21'6M
1MR2R

TO PRINT 7

23.5'
RD CLR

3

32
1'

28
0'

24
6'

24
7'

244'

277'

3 PROPOSED  AERIAL 072 FIBER
CABLE LASHED TO EXISTING
STRAND

min.

20 5

18'

WINDING RIVER RD
Aerial Clearance Detail

EO
P

EO
P

5

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

6

36



ROW
R

O
W

EOP
EO

P

ROW

R
O

W

EOP
EO

P

202

206

223

EMPTY

214

222

226

EMPTY

234

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

223

221

219

A

A

A

W
IN

DI
NG

 R
IV

ER
 R

D 
NE

P-8369
LP-28'
CA-23'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-S 29'6M
1MR2R

P-UKN-12
LP-32'
CA-28'
ATT-28'
HOA-28'
DG-S 21'6M
ANCHOR-1MR2R

P.
UK

N-
12

P.21

P.
74
24
46

P.8
30
5

P.8369

P-742446
LP-28'
CA-26'
ATT-26'
HOA-26'
DG-E 25'10M
ANCHOR-1MR2R

P-8305
LP-28'
CA-23'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-S 40'6M
2MR3R

P-21
LP-32'
CA-28'
ATT-28'
HOA-28'
DG-E 25'6M
ANCHOR-2M2R

TO PRINT 8

TO
 PR

IN
T 6

26'
CLR
RD

21.5'
CLR

28
8'

300'

15
6'

12
9'

168'

min.

20 5

18'

WINDING RIVER RD NE
Aerial Clearance Detail

EO
P

EO
P

54

3

3
PROPOSED  AERIAL 072 FIBER
CABLE LASHED TO EXISTING
STRAND

4
PROPOSED 1552' AERIAL 048
FIBER CABLE LASHED TO
EXISTING STRAND

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

7

37



ROW

RO
W

EOPEOP

238

242

246

248

250

256

260

262

264

266

271

267

271

EM
PT

Y

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

W
IN

DIN
G R

IV
ER

 R
D N

E
A

EMPTY

P.UKN13

P.246

P.7624

P.7197

P-UKN13
LP-32'
CA-28'
ATT-28'
HOA-28'
DG-XFMR

P-246
LP-27'
CA-23'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-E 15'4M
2MR2R

P-7624
LP-25'
CA-23'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG- XFMR

P-7197
LP-27'
CA-24'
ATT-24'
HOA-24'
DG-N 24'6M
2MR3R

TO PRINT 7

26
'

RD C
LR

60'

55
'

26
6'

4

min.

20 5

18'

WINDING RIVER RD NE
Aerial Clearance Detail

EO
P

EO
P

5

4
PROPOSED AERIAL 048 FIBER
CABLE LASHED TO EXISTING
STRAND

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

8

38



EO
P

EO
P

EO
P

EO
P

A

A

A

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

EMPTY

EMPTY

243

254

250

246

244

242

EMPTY

238

236

TO PRINT 10

P.26

P.25

P.24

P.238

P.743291

N
 R

O
C

K 
IS

LA
N

D
 D

R

P.26
LP-28'
CA-23'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-XFMR-N

P.25
LP-28'
CA-23'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-E18'10M
1MR1R

P.24
LP-31'
CA-24'
ATT-24'
HOA-24'
DG-E22'10M
1MR2R

P.238
LP-32'
CA-25'
ATT-25'
HOA-25'
DG-E21'10M
1MR1R

P.743291
LP-32'
CA-25'
ATT-25'
HOA-25'
DG-E22'6M
1MR2R

TO PRINT 3

A

A

A
17

2'
23

5'
15

9'
13

2'

13
6'

5
PROPOSED AERIAL 048 FIBER
CABLE LASHED TO EXISTING
STRAND

5

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

9

39



P.8329
LP-28'
CA-22'
ATT-22'
HOA-22'
DG-N28'10M
2MR2R

P.29
LP-28'
CA-22'
ATT-22'
HOA-2'
DG-E21'10M
1MR1R

P.8479
LP-27'
CA-21'
ATT-21'
HOA-21'
DG-S29'10M
2MR2R

EOP

EOP

EO
P

R
O

W

ROW

N ROCK ISLAND DR
251

262

266

VL

VL

278

VL

290

VL
298

302

299

295

293

287

277

265

P.8609
LP-27'
CA-23'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-XFMR-GRD-M

P.30
LP-28'
CA-23'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-N21'10M
1MR1R

P.262
LP-28'
CA-23'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-XFMR-N

P.262

P.UNK-4

P.29

P.30

P.8609

P.8329

P.8479

P.UNK-4
LP-28'
CA-23'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-E21'10M
1MR2R

TO PRINT 9

A

A

A

A

A

A 278

100'

131'

185'

63'40'

36
'

5
PROPOSED AERIAL 048 FIBER
CABLE LASHED TO EXISTING
STRAND

5

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

10

40



ROW

EO
P

EOP

ROW

R
O

W

EOP

EO
P

ROW

R
O

W

EOP

EO
P

EO
P

TO
 PR

IN
T 12

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

114
AGING
GREYMATTER

112

EMPTY

104

102

123

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

S 
ROCK 

IS
LA

ND D
R N

E

TO PRINT 2

P.
74
36
15

P.1
23

P.7107

P.
74

32

ROCK SPRINGS RD NE

RO
CK

 IS
LA

ND
 D

R

TO
 P

RI
NT

 1
6

A

P-7432
LP-33'
CA-29'
ATT-29'
HOA-29'
DG-W 21'6M

P-7107
LP-28'
CA-23'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-E 20'6M

P-123
LP-40'
CA-29'
ATT-29'
HOA-29'
DG-E 23'10''

P-743615
LP-27'
CA-25'
ATT-25'
HOA-25'
DG-E 21'

24.5'
RD
CLR

22.5'
RD
CLR

6

345'

275'
9

29
7'

25
8'

180'

6A

6
PROPOSED AERIAL 144 FIBER
CABLE LASHED TO EXISTING
STRAND

6A
PROPOSED 800' AERIAL 144
FIBER CABLE LASHED TO
EXISTING STRAND

9
PROPOSED 2238' AERIAL 144
FIBER CABLE LASHED TO
EXISTING STRAND

min.

20 5

18'

ROCK ISLAND DR
Aerial Clearance Detail

EO
P

EO
P

5

min.

20 5

18'

ROCK SPRINGS RD NE
Aerial Clearance Detail

EO
P

EO
P

5

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

11

41



EOP

EOP

EOP

EO
P

EOP

EO
P

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

RO
CK ISLAND DR

S ROCK ISLAND DR

P.
76

81
P.108

P.743018

ROW

ROW

ROW

122
120

118
EMPTY

104

101

109

EMPTY

EMPTY
EMPTY

EMPTY

P.101

P.7007

TO
 PR

IN
T 13

TO
 PR

IN
T 11

TO PRINT 15

P.743018
LP-27'
CA-24'
ATT-24'
HOA-24'
DG-E20'6M
1MR2R

P.7007
LP-27'
CA-24'
ATT-24'
HOA-24'
DG-N24'10M
1MR2R

P.101
LP-25'
CA-25'
ATT-25'
HOA-25'
DG-E15'6M
1MR3R

P.7681
LP-25'
CA-21'
ATT-21'
HOA-21'
DG-N21'10M
1MR1R

P.108
LP-27'
CA-23'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-W18'6M
1MR2R

281'

22
9'

134'

223'

22'
RD
CLR

24.5'
RD
CLR

22.5'
RD
CLR

12
2'

20
4'

19.5'
RD
CLR

7

8

6A

min.

20 5

18'

S ROCK ISLAND DR
Aerial Clearance Detail

EO
P

EO
P

5

6A
PROPOSED AERIAL 144 FIBER
CABLE LASHED TO EXISTING
STRAND

7 PROPOSED 2526' AERIAL 048
FIBER CABLE LASHED TO
EXISTING STRAND

8
PROPOSED 1293' AERIAL 024
FIBER CABLE LASHED TO
EXISTING STRAND

min.

20 5

18'

ROCK ISLAND LN
Aerial Clearance Detail

EO
P

EO
P

5

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

12

42



ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

EOP

EOP

A

A

A

TO
 P

R
IN

T 
12

TO
 P

R
IN

T 
14

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

147

143

141

139

137
133

131

P-UNK-1
LP-27'
CA-24'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-N 20'
6M1MR2R

P-143
LP-27'
CA-22'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-E 17'10M 1MR2R

P-7999
LP-27'
CA-24'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-S 28'6M
1MR2R

P-7339
LP-27'
CA-24'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-S  21'6M 1MR2R

P-137
LP-27'
CA-24'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'

P.UNK-1

P.143

P.7999 P.137 P.7339

S ROCK ISLAND DR

132

A

A

A

EOP

EOP

251'
255'

228'

97' 102'

7 PROPOSED AERIAL 048 FIBER
CABLE LASHED TO EXISTING
STRAND

7

21'
CLR
RD

min.

20 5

18'

S ROCK ISLAND DR
Aerial Clearance Detail

EO
P

EO
P

5

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

13

43



S ROCK ISLAND DR

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

EO
P

EOP

EOP

EOP

EO
P

EMPTY
176

165
163

EMPTY

157 155

153

151

149

EMPTYEMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

EM
PTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

168

EMPTY

EMPTY

EMPTY

A

A

A

P-168
LP-27'
CA-24'
ATT-24'
HOA-24'
DG-W 19'6M
1MR1R

P-157
LP-40'
CA-34'
ATT-34'
HOA-34'
DG-XFMR

P-7299
LP-27'
CA-22'
ATT-22'
HOA-22'
DG-XFMR

P-149
LP-27'
CA-23'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-E 20'6M
1MR2R

P-0057
LP-29'
CA-23'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-N 23'6M
1MR2R

P.168

P.157
P.7289

P.7299

P.149

P.0057

P-7289
LP-27'
CA-22'
ATT-22'
HOA-22'
DG-XFMR

TO PRINT 13

A

A

A 21'
CLR
RD

19
9'

17
1'

82'
183'

268'
7

7 PROPOSED AERIAL 048 FIBER
CABLE LASHED TO EXISTING
STRAND

min.

20 5

18'

S ROCK ISLAND DR
Aerial Clearance Detail

EO
P

EO
P

5

27'
CLR
RD

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

14

44



R
O

W

ROW

R
O

W

EO
P

EO
P

132
129

125

121

124

120

117

112

108
111

116

A

A

P.741853

P.117

P.121

R
O

C
K ISLAN

D
 LN

 N
E

P-121
LP-29'
CA-26'
ATT-25'
HOA-25'
DG-S 7'6M
2MR2R

P-117
LP-27'
CA-24'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-N 20'6M
2MR2R

P-741853
LP-29'
CA-25'
ATT-24'
HOA-24'
DG-W 25'10M
1MR2R

TO PRINT 12

A

A

A

min.

20 5

18'

ROCK ISLAND LN NE
Aerial Clearance Detail

EO
P

EO
P

5

229'

251'

21.5'
CLR
RD

8

8 PROPOSED AERIAL 024 FIBER
CABLE LASHED TO EXISTING
STRAND

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

15

45



P.132
LP-27'
CA-24'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-S23'10M1MR2R

P.112
LP-32'
CA-29'
ATT-28'
HOA-28'
DG-S26'6M1MR1R

R
O

W

ROW

ROW

R
O

W

ROW

ROW

ROW

EOP

EOP

EOP

EOP

EOP

EOP

EOP

EOP

ROW

ROW

ROCK SPRINGS RD NE

ROCK S
PRIN

GS R
D N

E

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

100

138
136

132

128

124

120

112

116

108

VL

100

TO
 P

RIN
T 1

1

TO
 P

RIN
T 1

7

P.UNK-2
LP-28'
CA-26'
ATT-25'
HOA-25'
DG-N20' 10M1MR2R

P.8279
LP-28'
CA-24'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'
DG-S18'
10M1MR1R

P.UKN-2

P.8279

P.112

P.124

P.132

P.124
LP-28'
CA-24'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'

P.8299

P.8299
LP-27'
CA-24'
ATT-23'
HOA-23'

ROW

ROW

ROW9

304'

196'

189'

190'

98'

9
PROPOSED AERIAL 048 FIBER
CABLE LASHED TO EXISTING
STRAND

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

16

46



P.9897
LP-26'
CA-23'
ATT-22'
HOA-22'
DG-S6'6M
3MR3R

EOP

EO
P

EOP

ROCK SPRINGS RD NE

A

A

A

A
A

A

A

P.9897

P.147

P.152

P.197

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

142 144 148

152

156

160

164

163

159

155

EMPTY

147

143

P.147
LP-25'
CA-22'
ATT-21'
HOA-21'
DG-N21'6M
1MR2R

P.152
LP-26'
CA-23'
ATT-22'
HOA-22'
DG-W22'10M
1MR2R

P.160
LP-27'
CA-23'
ATT-22'
HOA-22'
DG-E20'6M
1MR2R

TO
 P

RI
NT

 1
6

TO
 FI

ELD

19.5'
RD
CLR

19.5'
RD
CLR

9
PROPOSED AERIAL 048 FIBER
CABLE LASHED TO EXISTING
STRAND

9

110' 296'

144'

256'

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

17

47



P-P
=3

75
'

PI-P
=2

4'

EOP

EO
P

EO
P

EOP

EOP

EO
P

HARBOR DR

RO
CK

 S
PR

IN
G

S 
RD

 N
E

ROCK SPRINGS RD NE

EOP

IS
LA

ND C
T 

NE

HARBOR C
T

EOP

EO
P

EO
P

EOP

LAKE RIDGE RD

B

BBBB ROW

ROW

ROW

RO
W

ROW RO
W

ROW

ROW

105

105

225

106

TO
 P

R
IN

T 
2

TO
 P

R
IN

T
19

P-P=395'

229

P-P
=2

57
'

P-P=526'

1310

12

1

20

20

20

10A

10B

19

19

PROPOSED BURIED 048 FIBER
CABLE BY STANDARD DRY BORE
@ MIN. 24' DEPTH

10

10A
PROPOSED 415' BURIED 048
FIBER CABLE BY STANDARD
DRY BORE  @ MIN. 24' DEPTH

10B
PROPOSED 572' BURIED 048
FIBER CABLE BY STANDARD
DRY BORE  @ MIN. 24' DEPTH

12
PROPOSED 533' BURIED 048
FIBER CABLE BY STANDARD
DRY BORE  @ MIN. 24' DEPTH

1 PROPOSED 124' BURIED 1"
INNERDUCT

13 PROPOSED 347' BURIED 048
FIBER CABLE BY STANDARD
DRY BORE  @ MIN. 24' DEPTH
PROPOSED 17"X30"X24" HANDHOLE19

PROPOSED 10"X15" HANDHOLE20

0+
00

1+24

B

EO
P

EO
P

Bore Detail - No Drainage Ditch Involved

24"min. 48"
min.

2'

24"min.

20'

HARBOR DR

2'

EO
PR
O

W

R
O

W

50'

15'
17'16'

TYPICAL  ISLAND CT NE

EO
P

2'17'

C
AB

LE

EO
PR
O

W

R
O

W

50'

15'20'

TYPICAL HARBOR CT

C
AB

LE

EO
P

13'2'

15'

EO
PR
O

W

R
O

W

80'

30'20'

TYPICAL HARBOR DR

C
AB

LE

EO
P

28'2'

30'

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

18

48



EOP

EO
PEO

P
R

O
C

K 
SP

R
IN

G
S 

R
D

 N
E

A

B

B

ROW

ROW

R
O

W

R
O

W

EMPTY

225

233

232

124

120

116

EMPTY

106

EMPTY

P.147

P.116

P.8781

P.147
LP-25'
CA-21'
ATT-21'
HOA-21'
DG-N21'6M
1MR2R

P.116
LP-28'
CA-22'
ATT-22'
HOA-22'
DG-W15'6M
2MR2R

P.8781
LP-31'
CA-22'
ATT-22'
HOA-21'
DG-XFMR-N

TO
 PR

IN
T 18

P-P
=32

1'

B
TO

FIE
LD

HARBOR DR
A

RISER DOWN 26'

R
ISER

 U
P 26'

1

20
20

11

EO
PR
O

W

R
O

W

50'

15'20'

TYPICAL HARBOR DR

C
AB

LE

EO
P

13'2'

15'

B

EO
P

EO
P

Bore Detail - No Drainage Ditch Involved

24"min. 48"
min.

2'

24"min.

20'

ROCK SPRINGS RD NE

2'

20
2'

27
7'

1 PROPOSED 77' BURIED 1"
INNERDUCT

10B

10C

10B
PROPOSED BURIED 048 FIBER
CABLE BY STANDARD DRY BORE
@ MIN. 24' DEPTH

10C
PROPOSED 554' AERIAL 048
FIBER CABLE LASHED TO
EXISTING STRAND

11
PROPOSED 477' BURIED 024
FIBER CABLE BY STANDARD
DRY BORE  @ MIN. 24' DEPTH
PROPOSED 10"X15" HANDHOLE20

Dwg. of 19

Exchange:

Designer:

Phone:

Authorization:

PUTNAM COUNTY

PROPOSED TELEPHONE FACILITIES
ON RIGHT OF WAY OF

ATTSE

N

SMITH,TYRONE

6786247129

A029ERL

706485

19

49



File Attachments for Item:

9. Approval of Surplus of Fixed Assets (staff-Fin)

50



51



File Attachments for Item:

10. Appointment to the Putnam Development Authority (staff-CC)

52



Applicants for Putnam Development Authority                                                                 5/27/2022

NAME ADDRESS DISTRICT BACKGROUND
APPLICATION 

DATE

Brice Doolittle 111 Dogwood Lane 2

Project Manager for 

ESG/EPWSA; Bachelors of 

Science in Biology from GA 

College and State 

University; serving on PDA 

since April 2021 5/12/2022

Kerry Kenneth 

Glass 176 Twisting Hill Rd 4

Territory Manager-Flint 

Equipment; BBA in 

Marketing and MBA in 

Finance from Kennesaw 

State 5/24/2022

Michael A. Payne 104 Dogwood Lane 2

Investment Engagement 

Director at Chamber of 

Commerce; BS in Political 

Science from University of 

North GA 5/24/2022

There is one vacancy:

Brice Doolittle Term Expired 6/1/2022

5 year term

Page 1 of 1

53



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 

www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

 

N O T I C E 

 
 

 
The Putnam County Board of Commissioners is seeking individuals interested 

in serving on the Putnam Development Authority.  The candidates should 
be dedicated, fair minded, not self-serving and willing to devote the time 

necessary for the position.  Successful candidate must attend State 
Mandated training before the end of the first year of appointment.   

 

Interested persons should submit an application to the Putnam County Board 
of Commissioners, 117 Putnam Drive, Suite A, Eatonton, Georgia 31024.  

Applications will be accepted until the positions are filled.  The board 
application form can be found on the county website at 

www.putnamcountyga.us (in the “How Do I…” or “Forms & Documents” 
sections) or by calling 706-485-5826. 

 
 

 
05/12/2022 & 05/19/2022 

 
 

 

54

http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


5 year terms           

5 members (local development) Appointed by BOC                   

Copy to Economic Development Director                                                                                          Last Updated 5/27/2022 

 

PUTNAM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

MEMBER                                     TERM EXPIRES 

 

John Wojtas, 2022 Vice Chairman      05/01/2026 

101 Horseshoe Court 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

Patty Burns, 2022 Secretary/Treasurer      05/01/2025 

120 Nina Drive 

Eatonton, GA  31024   

 

Walter C. Rocker, III**, 2022 Chairman     05/01/2023 

409 N. Madison Avenue 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

Brice Doolittle****        06/01/2022 

111 Dogwood Lane 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

Mylle Mangum*        05/01/2023 

416 North Jefferson Avenue 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

 

 

 

*Filling the unexpired term of Ed Waggoner 

**Filling the unexpired term of Bill Sharp 

****Filling the unexpired term of Eugene Smith 
 

55



56



57



58



59



File Attachments for Item:

11. Awarding of Solicitation 22-04-21 Bethel Church Road Waterline Relocation (staff-CM)

60



BID TABULATION FOR ALL BIDS
RECEIVED AT PUTNAM COUNTY
ON THURSDAY, MAY 12, 2022 AT 2:00 PM

PROJECT:
Bethel Church Road Waterline Relocation BIDDERS:
Project #: TP0001.002 Fortis Engineering Pyles Plumbing RDJE, Inc. Coggins Construction Co. 

607 Old Pheonix Road 835 Hillcrest Industrial Blvd 679 Hwy 29 South, Suite A 1415 Highway 19 S

A.  BASE BID Eatonton, GA 31024 Macon, GA 31204 Newnan, GA 30263 Thomaston, GA 30286

ITEM UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL
NO. QTY. UNIT DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1 200 CY Rock Removal - Base Cost 60.00$                12,000.00$             60.00$                  12,000.00$                60.00$                  12,000.00$               60.00$                   12,000.00$               
2 200 CY Rock Removal - Premium Cost 85.00$                17,000.00$             140.00$                28,000.00$                85.00$                  17,000.00$               85.00$                   17,000.00$               
3 1.30 AC Clearing & Grubbing 15,000.00$         19,500.00$             9,500.00$             12,350.00$                7,300.00$             9,490.00$                 41,615.38$            54,099.99$               
4 1,800 LF 12" C-900 PVC Water Main (Open Cut) 79.23$                142,614.00$           90.60$                  163,080.00$              129.00$                232,200.00$             127.05$                 228,690.00$             
5 1 EA 3-Way Fire Hydrant Assembly 4,618.08$           4,618.08$               3,817.00$             3,817.00$                  6,100.00$             6,100.00$                 6,654.71$              6,654.71$                 
6 1 EA 6" Gate Valve w/Box 1,907.39$           1,907.39$               1,750.00$             1,750.00$                  1,950.00$             1,950.00$                 2,157.66$              2,157.66$                 
7 1 EA 12" Gate Valve w/ Box 4,770.28$           4,770.28$               4,500.00$             4,500.00$                  5,125.00$             5,125.00$                 4,604.72$              4,604.72$                 
8 500 LB C-153 Compact Ductile Iron Fittings 12.83$                6,415.00$               15.00$                  7,500.00$                  15.00$                  7,500.00$                 34.72$                   17,360.00$               
9 2 EA Cut & Cap Existing 12" Water Main 3,249.74$           6,499.48$               4,150.00$             8,300.00$                  1,650.00$             3,300.00$                 4,260.47$              8,520.94$                 
10 2 EA Connect to Existing 12" Water Main 4,891.00$           9,782.00$               4,500.00$             9,000.00$                  9,500.00$             19,000.00$               1,697.71$              3,395.42$                 
11 1 EA Remove Existing Fire Hydrant 1,200.00$           1,200.00$               500.00$                500.00$                     1,000.00$             1,000.00$                 4,821.60$              4,821.60$                 
12 1 LS Flowable Fill 6,000.00$           6,000.00$               22,300.00$           22,300.00$                28,500.00$           28,500.00$               37,000.00$            37,000.00$               
13 1 LS Water Meter & Valve Vault Relocation 81,680.38$         81,680.38$             80,000.00$           80,000.00$                85,000.00$           85,000.00$               138,488.48$          138,488.48$             
14 1 LS Erosion Control 10,000.00$         10,000.00$             10,000.00$           10,000.00$                18,850.00$           18,850.00$               17,220.00$            17,220.00$               
15 1 LS Traffic Control 6,000.00$           6,000.00$               1,500.00$             1,500.00$                  3,250.00$             3,250.00$                 21,043.68$            21,043.68$               
16 1 LS Supplementwal Work Allowance 20,000.00$         20,000.00$             20,000.00$           20,000.00$                20,000.00$           20,000.00$               20,000.00$            20,000.00$               

349,986.61$           384,597.00$              470,265.00$             593,057.20$             

B.  ALTERNATE BID ITEMS - Modified Pipe Material
ALT-4 1,800 LF 12" Ductile Iron Water Main (Open Cut) 83.23$                149,814.00$           93.00$                  167,400.00$              103.00$                185,400.00$             103.41$                 186,138.00$             

C.  ALTERNATE BID ITEMS - Highway 441 Jack & Bore
C-1 30 LF 12" Water Main (Open Cut) 80.23$                2,406.90$               79.50$                  2,385.00$                  129.00$                3,870.00$                 96.69$                   2,900.70$                 
C-2 115 LF 12" Water Main w/ 20" Steel Casing (Open Cut) 290.89$              33,452.35$             224.15$                25,777.25$                376.00$                43,240.00$               350.40$                 40,296.00$               

C-3 110 LF 12" Water Main (Jack & Bore, Includes 20" Steel 
Casing)

475.93$              52,352.30$             419.15$                46,106.50$                747.00$                82,170.00$               703.52$                 77,387.20$               

C-4 1 EA 3-Way Fire Hydrant Assembly 4,618.08$           4,618.08$               3,817.00$             3,817.00$                  6,100.00$             6,100.00$                 6,654.77$              6,654.77$                 
C-5 1 EA 6" Gate Valve w/ Box 1,907.39$           1,907.39$               1,750.00$             1,750.00$                  1,195.00$             1,195.00$                 2,157.66$              2,157.66$                 
C-6 2 EA 12" Gate Valve w/ Box 4,770.28$           9,540.56$               4,500.00$             9,000.00$                  5,125.00$             10,250.00$               4,604.72$              9,209.44$                 
C-7 1 EA 12" MJ DI Plug 2,188.75$           2,188.75$               2,500.00$             2,500.00$                  1,645.00$             1,645.00$                 1,197.08$              1,197.08$                 

106,466.33$           91,335.75$                148,470.00$             139,802.85$             

I hereby certify that this is a true and accurate Bid Tabulation of all bids received on May 12, 2022.

 
Charlie Bridges, Project Manager 

TOTAL BASE BID AMOUNT

BASE BID

TOTAL ALTERNATE C ITEMS

*Due to a rounding error on base bid item 3 and a multiplication error on base bid item 8, Coggins Total Base Bid changed from $593,054.71 to $593,057.20. Due to an error in multiplication, Coggins Alternate Item ALT-4 

*Due to an error in multiplication, Pyles Plumbing Alternate Item C-6 Total Price changed from $4,500.00 to $9,000.00

 Total Price changed from $186,141.84 to $186,138.00. Due to an error in multiplication, Coggins Alternate Item C-2 Total Price changed from $40,296.28 to $40,296.00. Due to an error in multiplication, Coggins Alternate Item 
C-3 changed from $77,387.22 to $77,387.20. 

61



6400 Peake Rd.  Macon GA 31210       phone: 478.474-4996     fax: 478.474-5045     www.esgengineering.com 

 

 
 
 
May 19, 2022 
 
Paul Van Haute 
Putnam County  
117 Putnam Drive  
Eatonton, GA 31024 
 
SUBJECT:   Recommendation of Award 

Bethel Church Rd Waterline Relocation  
 

Mr. Van Haute, 
 
As you are aware, bids were received and opened for the above subject project on Thursday, May 
12, 2022. A total of four (4) responsive bids were received. Fortis Engineering, with a total base bid 
of $349,986.61 was determined to be the low bidder.  
 
 
ESG Engineering recommends that the Putnam County enter into an Agreement with Fortis 
Engineering for the project titled, “Bethel Church Road Waterline Relocation” in the amount of 
$349,986.61. 
 
I have enclosed the Bid Tabulation and the Notice of Award. Upon approval, please sign the Notice 
of Award and return it to me so I can forward it to the Contractor for his signature.  
 
Please contact me with any comments or questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
ESG Engineering, Inc. 

 
Charlie Bridges 
Project Manager 

62



File Attachments for Item:

12. Authorization for staff to schedule a Public Hearing for proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam

County Code of Ordinances - Chapter 28 (Development Regulations) (staff-CA)

63



PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE PUTNAM COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 
    Created: 2022-02-14 13:55:41 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 42) 

 
Page 1 of 2 

EXPLANATION OF DOCUMENTS: 
 
Red language equals added text. 
Struck through language equals deleted text. 
 

Chapter 28 - DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 
 

Sec. 28-40. Development consultation and concept plan. 
(a) Minor subdivision. 

(1) The developer who chooses to divide a parcel into four or fewer lots must consult with the director 
before proceeding with the drawings showing the proposed division of the parcel.  

(2) The lots in the minor subdivision must front on an existing public or private road classified as other 
than an arterial or collector whether of the state or county roadway system as defined by this chapter.  

(3) Any minor subdivision of property contained within a major subdivision for which a final plat has been 
submitted within the last __ years must front on the interior public or private roads of the major 
subdivision. 

(b) Major subdivision and site development. 
(1) A concept plan, drawn to scale, is required reflecting the conditions of the zoning approval, if any were 

so applied by the board of commissioners, and shall be submitted to and approved by the director 
prior to the submittal of any other drawings and documents. The director shall have five days to 
determine compliance with the applicable conditions of zoning approval and shall inform the applicant 
of the director's remarks or approval before submission to the technical review committee (TRC).  

(2) If no conditions of approval apply to the land on which the subdivision is proposed, the developer may 
choose to either meet with the director informally to discuss the concept of the subdivision or to 
submit an application for preliminary plat approval.  

(3) The lots in the major subdivision must front on interior public or private road, which are to be designed 
according to article III, design standards, division 1, infrastructure requirements of this chapter.  

(c) Site development. 
(1) The term "site development" means any multifamily or a commercial or industrial project intended to 

be developed as an entity. Each site development is described, in part, by a site plan, which shows the 
development in detail.  

(2) For all multifamily, commercial, or industrial projects, the developer shall submit a concept plan to the 
director for processing to the TRC that shall comply in all respects to chapter 66, zoning, subsection 66-
161(c)(12).  

(3) Subsequent to the review of the application by the TRC and approval of the concept plan by the 
director, the applicant shall prepare a detailed site plan to accompany the application for a 
development permit. (See section 28-52.)  

(Res. of 7-17-2007(2); Ord. of 3-15-2016(1) ) 
 

Sec. 28-65. Design guidelines for major subdivisions and site developments. 
(a) Continuation of existing streets. Where feasible, existing streets shall be extended for access into the 

subdivision. Such extensions shall be continued at the same or greater width, but in no case shall be less than 
the required width. However, street extensions shall connect developments of similar uses only as defined 
by the zoning ordinance. In no case shall a street in an industrial development be connected to a street in a 
residential zoning district. Traffic loading on the existing street system must be considered. If the additional 
traffic volume is determined by the director to exceed the design specifications of the existing street and/or 
the nearest street intersection, the director may deny access or require the developer to improve the 
existing street and/or intersection approaches to accommodate the additional volume.  

64



 

 

 
    Created: 2022-02-14 13:55:41 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 42) 

 
Page 2 of 2 

(b) Linear street vertical grades. Maximum and minimum linear street grades shall be as follows:  
(1) County arterial street: not more than six percent.  
(2) County collector street: not more than ten percent.  
(3) Local streets: not more than 12 percent.  
(4) Alleys: not more than 12 percent.  

(c) Horizontal curvature. The minimum radii of centerline road curvature shall be as follows:  
(1) County arterial street: 300 feet.  
(2) County collector and local street: 200 feet.  
(3) Local streets: 100 feet.  

(d) Tangents. Between reverse curves, there shall be a tangent having a length not less than 50 feet on local 
streets and 100 feet on county collectors and 200 feet on county arterials.  

(e) Vertical alignment. There shall be a horizontal sight distance at all intersections, when measured from a 
height of three feet, according to the requirements of Chapter Three of the Georgia Department of 
Transportation Regulations for Driveway and Encroachment Control.  

(f) Intersection design. Street intersections shall be as nearly at right angles as possible. No street intersection 
shall be at an angle of less than 78 degrees. Street intersections must be separated from each other in 
accordance with Table 3-1 in Chapter Three of the Georgia Department of Transportation Regulations for 
Driveway and Encroachment Control.  

(g) Cross slope. Street and road cross slopes shall be at least two percent (one-fourth inch per foot) measured 
tangent to the center run of the road. Appropriate cross slope design considerations shall be made for 
transitions into and through super elevations at curves.  

(h) Driveway turnouts/curb cuts. Where deemed necessary by the director, the driveway or entrance (residential 
or industrial) shall have a paved turnout, meeting Georgia DOT specifications. Commercial driveways or 
entrances shall have a paved turnout, meeting Georgia DOT specifications, extending from the edge of the 
existing pavement of at least 20 feet into the property.  
(1) Turnouts/curb cuts shall be designed and constructed so as not to release runoff waters onto the 

roadway but rather into curb inlets or roadside ditches before reaching the existing street/road. Runoff 
waters from a 25-year or less storm event are not allowed to drain off a driveway onto a street/road. In 
high traffic/volume areas (typically county arterials and collectors) designs accommodating larger 
storm events will be required.  

(2) No curb cut shall be located closer to the nearest radius return of the intersection of two streets than 
100 feet. Curb cut spacing shall adhere to Table 3-1 "Driveway Spacing Criteria" in Chapter Three of the 
Georgia Department of Transportation Regulations for Driveway and Encroachment Control unless the 
width of the parcel requesting the curb cut is insufficient to achieve this standard because of the 
existence of curb cuts on adjacent parcels or where the length of the street on which such curb cut is 
proposed is less than 100 feet and only one parcel is served by such street. In which case If either 
condition exists for a curb cut to be within 100 feet of the intersection of two streets, the director shall 
determine which location protects the rights of the property owner and the protection of safety of the 
public.  

(Res. of 7-17-2007(2); Ord. of 3-15-2016(1) ) 
Editor's note(s)—An ordinance adopted March 15, 2016 changed the title of § 28-65 from "design" guidelines for 

subdivisions and site developments to read as herein set out.  
 

65


	Top
	Item #6.	2022-06-03 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 05-17-2022 BOC Minutes
	DRAFT 05-25-2022 BOC Called Meeting Minutes
	Agenda Item for Alcohol Licenses

	Item #7.	2022-06-03 BOC Indigent Defense
	GA Indigent Defense Services Agreement

	Item #8.	2022-06-03 BOC ROW-AT&T
	PUTNAM CO PERMIT APPLICATION
	County_A029ERL-R-

	Item #9.	2022-06-03 BOC Surplus
	Assets to Declare Surplus

	Item #10.	2022-06-03 BOC PDA Appointment
	Chart of Applicants for Putnam Development Authority
	Putnam Development Authority-Regular Term
	Putnam Development Authority
	PDA-Doolittle App_Redacted
	PDA-Glass App_Redacted
	PDA-Payne App_Redacted

	Item #11.	2022-06-03 BOC Bethel Church Waterline
	Bethel Church Rd Waterline Relocation Bid Tabulation
	Recommendation of Award - Bethel Church Rd

	Item #12.	2022-06-03 BOC Code Changes
	Chapter 28 - DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 060322

	Bottom

